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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE
COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%
March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Sub-Section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards {(“Ind AS”} prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.




We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Sub-
Section 10 of Section 143 of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial
position) of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and its profit (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

OTHER MATTER
The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016
and transition date opening Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015 included in these Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by us whose report
for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and 31st March, 2015 dated 18th April, 2016 and 15th
April, 2015 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as
adjusted for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition
to the Ind AS, which have been audited us.




Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements and our report on Qther Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below are not modified in respect of these matters.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

(a

(b

)

)

(c)

(d

(e

)

)

(f)

—

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the QOrder”) issued by
the Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by Sub-Section
11 of Section 143 of the Act, we enclose in “Annexure A”, a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder;

on the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31°
March, 2017 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors
are disqualified as on 31% March, 2017 from being appointed as a Director in terms
of Sub-Section 2 of Section 164 of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 121 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:




i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 31 on Contingent
Liabilities to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there could be any material foreseeable losses;

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. The Company has provided disclosures in Note 45 to the Ind AS financial
statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specifiéd bank notes
during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016. Based
on the audit procedures performed and taking into consideration the
information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the total receipts,
total payments and total amount deposited in banks are in accordance with
the books of account maintained by the Company. However, in the absence
of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment upon the
appropriateness of classification between specified bank notes and other
denomination notes of ‘permitted receipts’/'non-permitted receipts’ and
‘permitted payments’/‘non-permitted payments’.

For Amit Desai & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm’s Reg. No.: 130710W
W o~
(Amit Nm

Partner
Membership No.: 032926

Mumbai: 29" May, 2017




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of DELTA
PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED, on the Ind AS financial statements for the
vear ended 31* March, 2017:

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view
on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the
information and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records
examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,

we report that:

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

{v}

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by
the management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties {(which are included under the
head ‘Property, plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As informed, no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act,
hence the provisions of Clause 3 (iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the
Act. Further, Section 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company as it is engaged
in the business of hotels and entertainment centres.

in our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within
the meaning of the Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies {(Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{v) of the
Order are not applicable.




{vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Central Government of India has not specified maintenance of cost records
under Sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products /
services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{vi) of the Order are not applicable.

{(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute, except for the dues in relation to custom duty and VAT as disclosed

hereunder:
Nature of the Amount Per_'lod to For_u m Wh.e re
Nature of Dues which the dispute is
Statute Rs. In Lacs .
amount relates pending
Custom Act CESTATE
’ D 4. FY 2 - !
1962 Custom Duty Rs.4.63 000-01 Mumbai
Appellate
Authority of
Goa Value
1. FY 2010-
Added Tax Act VAT Rs.1.77 010-11 Goa _
Commercial
Taxes

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The
Company did not have any outstanding dues to any financial institution, government
during the year or debenture holders.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer. Term loans obtained by the Company have been applied for the purpose for
which they were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the vear, nor have we been
informed of any such instance by the management. ;




{xi)

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

{xv}

{xvi)

As per the information and explanations given to us, Company has not paid/provided
any managerial remuneration to any of the directors; therefore provisions of Clause
3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefare, the provisions of
Clause 3{xii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Act,
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS. Section 177 of the Company is
not applicable to the Company.

As informed, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
audit. Therefore, provisions of Clause 3{xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him during the year.

Based on the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Amit Desai & Co
Chartered Accountants
[CAl Firm’s Reg. No.: 130710W

Mumbai: 26" May, 2017

Membership No.: 032926

“

d)\/

(Amit N. Desai)
Partner




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause {i} of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE
COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31% March,
2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting {“IFCoFR") of
the Company of as of that date.

MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's [FCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s [FCoFR.




MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the asseis of the company; {2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FENANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future
periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate IFCoFR and such
IFCoFR were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the IFCoFR criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of IFCoFR issued by the ICAI,

For Amit Desai & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm’s Reg. No.: 130710W

W 0
(Anﬁm

Partner
Membership No.: 032926

Mumbai: 29" May, 2017




DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Shoet as ot 31st Warch; 2017

{Rs. In Lakhs) {Unless specified otherwise '0' denotes amounts less than Rs, One lakh]

| Note “Asat Asat . Asat
Particulars .
. Na. 31st March, 2017 3Est March, 2016 X 1st April, 2015
ASSETS
1 |Non-Curtent Assets
{a) Fixed Assets
i} Property, Plant and Equipment 6587.83 65549 878.12
i) Intangible assats 3 0.33 0.64 0.99
-698.26 £658.13 878.08
{b} Financial Assets '
i} Other Financiat Assets ' 4 54.81 101.18 . 97.46
(c) Deferred Tax Assets [iNet) ' 72317 418.55 419.55
(d} Other Non Current Assets © 6 - 1,476.24 2.78 1,182.64 - 1895 1,415.02
2 |Current Assets .
{a} lnventories . . 7 15.71 32.48 40,23
(b} Financlal Assets ‘ : '
i} Trade Receivables 8 22.60 - -
ii} Cash and Cash Equivaients El 153.56 | 14.96 . 24.20
« {ij} Bank Balances other than (i) above 10 040 0.37 Q.34
iv) Other Financial Assets 11 7971 - ’ -
{€) Current Tax Assets (Net) . 12 - 80.84 . 81.61
(¢} Other Current Assats 13 872,56 1,151.94 | 3571 154,37 69.76 216.13
TOTAL ASSETS 2,528.18 1,347.02 1,63L15
Il [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity . .
{a) Eguity Share Capital ‘ 14 435.00 435.00 435.00
(b} Other Equity 15 (2,531.24) {2,096.24) {3,521.67) [3,086.67) {2,821.29) [2,386.29)
2 Non-Cuarrent liabitities
{a) Enancial Liakifities
i} Borrowings o : T 18 7.22 - - -
{b} Provisions 17 B.75 15.97 0.07 ’ 0.07 0.04 0.04
3 |Current Liabilities
{a) ‘Financial Liabilities |
i} Barrowings 18 4,549.87 4,024.87 3,787.87
i} Trade Payables 13 23.68 403.06 . 26,51
#i#)Other Financial Liabilities . 2o} 56.26 17z 5.24
{b} Other Current Lsablht:es 21 41.03 3.821- 197.70
{c} Provisions . 22 0.82 c.14 ' 0.08 .
{d} Current Tax Liabilities {Net} 232 26.82 4,708.45 - 4,433,561 - 4,017.39
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,628.18 1,347.02 1,63L15
The accompanying Significant Accounting Policies es pnd. notes are ah integral part of these financial statements

As Per Qur Report of Even Date
For Arnit Desai & Co
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No. 032926

Mumbai : 29th May, 2017

for and on behalf of Board of Directors

ey \

{Ashish Kapadla)
Director
DiN; 02011632 DiN: 00046112

Mumbat : 25th May, 2017




DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2017
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Unless SpECEfled otherwise '0’ denctes amounts less than Rs. One Jakh)
. - Note Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars .
No. 31st March, 2017 | 31st March, 2016
Income:
Revenue from-Operations 24 3,133.68 -
Other Income 25 24.57 328.23
Total Revenue 3,158.25 328.23
Expenses:
Cast of Material Consumed 26 44.31 -
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 27 {5.59) -
Emblbyee Benefits Expense 28 143.31 2165
Finance Costs 29 2651 407
‘Depreciation and Amortization Expense 28&3 140.03 22470
Other Expenses 30 2,035,58 778.23
‘Total Expenses 2,384.14 -1,028.66
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax 774.10 (700.43)
" Exceptional Items - -
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax 774.10 {700.43}
Tax Expenses ’
- Current Tax a0 87.00
- Deferred Tax 5 (303.48) -
"Total Tax Expenses ' (216.48) -
Net Profit/{Loss) for the Year . 990.58 {700.43}
‘Other Comprehensive income
(A} (i) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ’
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.45) 0.04
(i) Income tax relating {o above items 0.15 .
Total Other Comprehensive fncome for the year (0.30) 0.04
Total Comprehensive Income for the year- 950.28 (700.39)
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share 34 22.77 {16.10)
{Face Value of Rs. 10/- Each} ’
The accompanying Significant Accounting Policies and notes are an integral 1
part of these financial statements .
As Per Our Report of Even Date _
For Amit Desai & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants’ '
ICAI Firmy Reg ND 130710W
(Amlh@ {Ashish Kapadia)
Partner Director fector
Membership No. 032926 DiN; 020311632 DIN: 00046112
Mumbai : 25th May, 2017 Mumbai : 29th May, 2017




DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flo tement for the Year En 31st March, 2017
‘ (Rs in Lakhs} {Unless S;Jecmed otherwise '0' denotes amounts fess than Rs. One fakh)
Sr. No. i’art'icuiar_s Year Ended * Year Ended
31st March, 2017 | 31st March, 2016
A, CASH FEOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss} Before Tax 774.10 (700.43)
Adjustments for: - -
Depreciation & Amortizatien Expense 140.03 22470
Loss on Dispasal of Fixed Assets o 11.62
Provision For Doubtful Debts Written Back’ (2.18) (203.39)
Finance Costs 26.51 4.07
Interest income (2.39) (4.84)|
Operating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capltal Changes . 936.67 {668.27)
Adjustments for: : .
Trade and Other Receivables {22.60) -
Financial Assets (32.69) 1.09
Other Non.Financial Assets {843.85} 34.05
Inventories 16.78 7.73
Trade Payables {(377.21} " 579.94
Other Current Liabilitiés 46.12 {193.74)
Other Financial Liabilities 9.22 {1.59)
Cash Generated From / {Used in) Operations (268.17) (240.77)
Less: Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) 30.66 0.77
Net Cash Flow Generated From/{Used in} Operating Activities [A) (237.51) {240.01}
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .
Purchase of Fixed Asséts including Capital Work-in-Progress {176.35) (3.11)
Interest Income 1.70 -
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets - 0.95
~ |Net Cash Flow Generated From/{Used in) Investing Activities {B) {174.64) {2.16)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES
Net Proceeds from Unsecured-loans 525.00 237.00
Net Proceeds from Secured Loans 11.26 -
Finance Costs {26.34) (4.07)
Net Cash Flow Generated From/(Used in) Financing Activities (C} 509.92 232.93
Net Increase / (Decrease} In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 97.77 | {9.24)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at The Beginning of the Year 14.96 24.20
Cash & Cash Equivalents at The Closing of the Year 11272 | 14.96
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Component of Cash and Cash Equivalents Includes:
Bank Balances ‘
In Current Accounts 2.81 14.64
Cash on Hand 151.15 0,31
Book Overdraft (41.24) -
Notes :

" 1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “indirect Methad' as set out in the Ind-AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flow.

2)-Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

As Per Our Report of Even Date
for Amit Desai & Co
Chartered Accountants “?

\' S
=
ICAl Firm Reg. No. 130710W «: HUMBA! ;q;
. "» o
{Amit N. Desai}
Partner

Membership No. 032926

Mumbai : 29th May, 2017

" For and on behaif of Board of Directors

{Ashish Kapadia)
Director
DIN: 02011632

' Director _
DIN: 00046112

Mumbai: 29th May, 2017
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Delta Pleasure Cruise Company Private Limited
Notes the Financial Statement for the Year Ended 315t March, 2017

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Company Querview
Delta Pleasure Cruise Company Private Limited, mcorporated in the year 2000 under the provision of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
Company operates at Goa,in Gaming and Hospfta ity Segment The Company is subsidiary of Delta Corp Limited. The registered ofﬂce of the

company is located at Mumbai.
Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements hiave been prepared in accordance with the indian Accounting Standards {hereafter referred.to as the “Ind As”) as
rotified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) Ruies, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. .

The Company's financial statement upto and for the year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts} Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP).
The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupee, which is alsec Company’s functional currency. These standalone financial
statement (“the financials Statement”) of the company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017 {including Comparatives) were approved and
autherized by the Company’s board of directors as on 29th May, 2017,

' These financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017 are the first financials with comparatives, prepared under Ind AS. The Company has

ado;)ted all the Ind'AS Standards and adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First Time adeption of Indian Accounting Standards.
The transition was carried out from indian Accounting Principie generally accepted in Ind|a as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Ruie 7 of the Compames {Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconcnhatzon and description of the effect of the
transition have been summarized in Note 43 to these financial statement.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented on Financial Statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind
AS balance shest as at 1% Aprii 2015 being the date of transition. :

Historical cost convention

‘The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financizl assets and lizbilities which are measured at fair

values.

Rounding of Amounts

All the amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 1,
unless otherwise states. .

Curcent and Non-Current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-gurrent as per the Company’s normal pperating cycle {twelve months) and ather
¢riteria set cut in the Schedule 1l to, the Act

Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes purchase price and expenditures directly attributable to bringing them inio working condition for its intended use. Freehold %and
and capital work in progress are carried at cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any are not depreciated.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Al other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the
Statement of Profit er Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. '

Depreciation on Prapetty, plant and equipments is provided under the straight line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule
I to the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), and management bejieves that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule 1 {o the Act.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the Original cost of the asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. .

Gain or losses arising from derecognisation of Property, plant and equipment are measured as difference between the net disposat proceeds and
the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Intangible Assets
intaqgible Assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are stated at acquisition cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and

rebate less accurnulated amortisaticn and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price and any expenditure directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its warkir;_g condition for the intended use.

Subsequent cost are inciuded in the'asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropsiate, only when it is probable that futuze

. econemic banefits assotiated with the item will flow to the Company and'the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecogmtlon of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net dlsposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, arg
recogmsed in profit or loss when the asset is derecogmsed ofan intangible asset

intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight- line basis from date they are available for use.
The estimated useful life of an identifisbie intangible asset is based on number of factors including the effect of obsolesce, demand,.competition
and other economic factors and level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets. :

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantlally all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operatmg leases.

As a Lessee

ieases in which significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating
ieases. Payment made under operating lease are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on straight-line-basis over the period of the tease unless
the payment are structured to increase in line with expected general inflatipn to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase.

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis- over the lease term unless the
receipts are structured to increase in line with expected generaf inflation to compensate for the excepted inflationary cost increases. The
respactive leased assets are mcluded in the balance sheet based on their nature.

A teased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, i there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will abtain ownership |

.by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease tarm.

inventories

Consumables, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost computed on weighted average basis or net realisable value after providing cost of |
ohsolescange if any. The cost of inventories comprises cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in ordinary course of business iess the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale,

Segment Reporting

Operating segments. are reported i @ masner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief decision maker. Based on the
“management approach” as defined in ind AS 108 ~ Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's

performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments Accordingly, infoermaticn has

been presented along with Business Segments.

Borrowings

Borrowing are initially recognized at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Company has an unconditionat right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting pericd.




n)

Effective interest method

The effective Interest. method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of aliocating interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payment {including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recogriition.

- Revenue Recognition

i

iii)

Revenue is measured at the value of the consideration received or recéivable The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future ecenomic benefits will fiow to the Company and specmc criteria have been met for each of the
Company s activities as described below.

Revenue from sale of services

Casino gammg revenues are all amounts wagered in casinos Iess amounts paid as winnings to piayers of casing games. Gaming revenue is recorded
based on net gam/loss st the end of each day. The revenue recognised 1nc|udes gaming related taxes and duties which the Company pays as a
principal but excludes amount collected on behalf of third parties such as entry tax. Income from Slot Machines is accounted for on the basis of
actual collection in each respective machine., ' . ‘

Revenue from saie of services is recognised as and when the services agreed are rendered, net of discount to the customers and amount collected
on behalf of third parties such as service tax, luxury tax,

Revenue from Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of gnm:ls is measured at the fair vaiue of the consideration received or receivable excludmg taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the Government. Szle comprise sale of food and beverages relating to entertainment and haspitality operations,

Givigend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rcght to receive payment has been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest inceme from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective interest rate
apphcable which is the rate that exactly discounts estlmatecﬁ future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that BSSet s net
carrymg amount on initial recognition.

Employee Benefits

short-term employee benefits
The undiscaunted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be ‘paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the empioyees render the services, :

Post-employment benefits
Defined benefit plan

The lizbility recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined henefit grétuit\) plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The defined benefit cbligation is calcutated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The piesent value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by refererice to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to.theé terms of the related abligation.

The net interest cost Is caleutated by applying the discount rate to the defined benefit oblsgatlon This cost Is included in employee benefit expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains andllosses arising from exper}ence adjustments and changes in actuarizl assumptibns are reccign‘;sed in the period in which
they accur, directly in other comprehensive income and i5 not reclassified to profit or loss. They are included in retained earnings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the bzlance shaet. Defined benefit costs are categarised as follows:

service cost {including current service cnst past service cost, as well as galns and losses on curtailments and settlemen’ts),
net interest expense; and
remeasurement

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs In profit or Joss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment
gains and !osses are accounted for as past service costs.

Defined Contribution Plan .
Payments to defined contribution benefit plans are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
employee renders related service.
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Foreign turrency transactions

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions denpimninated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the closing rate of exchange prevailing on the
reporting date. .

Any exchange difference arising on account of settlement of foreign currency transactions and restatement of monetary assets and liabifities
denomlnated in formgn currency is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items messured at fair vaiue is treated in line with the recognition of

“ the gain or foss on the change in fair value of the item ({i.e., transiation differences on items whase fair value gain or foss is recognised in GCi or

Statement of Profit and Loss are alsc recognised in OCtor Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively}.

tncome Tax.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statemeat of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In whlch case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensnve income or |
equity,

Current Tax )
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates

and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is racognised on temparary dn‘ferences arising between the tax bases of assets and-liabilities used in the camputation of taxable profit
and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantlally enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liakilities and assets are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period.

Defarrad tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary d‘!ffe;e'nces ang unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that future taxahle amounts
- will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses

Deférred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and fliabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same faxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally
enforceahle right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

fMinimum Alternate Tax [MAT)

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit
asset is written down to the extent there is no langer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings pér share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares
autstanding during the financial year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period.

Diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of calcutating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the wmghted
average number of shares outstanding during the periad is adjusteu‘ for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. ’

Financial instruments

A financizl instriment is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument in another entity.

. Financial Assets

. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial asséts and liabilities are initialiy recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial fiabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.
Purchase and sale of f_inancial assets are recognised using trade date accounting. .

Subsequent measurament

Financial assets carried at amortised cost {AC)
A financia! asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to coliect
contractual cash fiows and the contractual terms of the financizl asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. o




n}

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

c

A financial asset is measured at FYTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achievad by both collecting contractual cash flows -
and selling financial assets and the contractuat terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Finéncial assets at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL) -
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

‘Qther Equity Investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognlsed in Statement of Profit and Loss, except fur those equity
investments for which the Company has elected to present. the value changes i sn ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 1089, the company applies the expected credit loss model for evasluating impairment of financial assets othier than those
measured at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss alfowance at an amount egual to:

Thé tweive months expected credit losses (expécted credit losses that result from those default events an the financiat instrument that are
possible with 12 months after the reporting date); or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result frorm all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument}

Fortrade receivables Company applles stmpllﬁed approach’ which requires expected lifetime fosses to be recognises from initial recogaition of the
receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolic of trade receivables, At every repumng date
these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the-forward looking estimates are analysed.

. For other assets, the Company uses 12 months ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is

significant increase in credit risk full-lifetime ECL is used. *
Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and measurement
All financiai liabilitias are récagnised initizlly at fair value and, in the case of loans, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial fiabilities at FVTPL include financial Kabilities held for trading and financial fiabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on fabilities held far
trading are recogmsed in the Statement of Prnflt and Loss.

Financial guaraniee contracts issued by the Company"are those. contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for ‘a' loss it

. incurs. because the specified debtor falls te make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 108 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as fisance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
term maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans are subsequently measured at amartised cast using the effective interest rate method.

Where the terms of a financial liability is re-negotiated and the Company issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liahility (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss; measured as a difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of equity instrument issued.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intentian to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financiai statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions and factors {including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be
reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are
known/ materialized.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide addlﬁaniamr"s?\
evidence about conditions existing on the reporting date / 3

:
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to evaluate whether thére is any indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired.'lf any
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash
Generating Units (CGU’s) fair'value fess costs of disposal and its vaiue in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an assef or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverahle amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into accouns, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Depréciétiun / amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful tives of the assets, after taking into account their estimated residual
value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar
assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The: depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Recoverability of trade réceivable

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determlmng whether a provision against those receivables
is required. Factors considered include the credit rating ‘of the counterparty, the amount and timing of antlcxpated future payments and any
p055|ble actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment,

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probabie that an cutflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of maoney is matersial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflacts, when app‘ropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When.discouriti_ng is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 8 finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise fram past events but their existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence of non-gecurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Impairmient of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financizl assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss retes The Company uses
Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculatlon based on Company 5 past history, existing market
conditions as weli as forwarg looking astimates at the end of each reporting periad.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation; mortality, discount
rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBG amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurement

Management sses valuation technigues to determme the fair value of financial instruments {where active market quotes are not avallable} and non
financial assets. This invaolves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.
Management hases its assumptzons on gbservable datz as far as p055|ble but this is ot always avaxlable In that case management uses the best

date.

MUMBA
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DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Nnte; to the Financial $tatements for the Year Endod 315t March, 2017

{Rs. in Lacs)
l Other Financial Assets - Noh Current . As al '
- ) 31.43.2017 31.83.2016 01.04.2015
Financial Assets Carried at amortised Cost
Security Deposits.
Unsecured, Considered Good ’ : : 33.16 : 101.18 9746
Bank Deposits
Unsecured, Constdered Good
Fixed Daposit {Lien by Banks) {*) 2108 | - N
Accrued Interest ' . ' 0.65 - -
Total . 54.81 101.18 §7.46
*) Fixet_ﬁ deposit pledged with bank against bank guarantee from a bank. '
Deferred Tax
The components of Deferred Tax Assets to the extent recognized and Deferred Tax Liabilities as on 31st March, 2017 are as follows:
' {Rs. in Lars)
-Particulars Asat
5 31.03.2017 ' 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Deferred Tax Liability: :
Differance Between Book and Tax Depreciation . - - -
. : (A) . - . - -
Deferred Tax Asset: . . -
Premeaserement beaefit of the defined benefit plans through OCt 0.15 - .
Carry Forward Business Losses and Unabsorbed Depreciation i 723.02 419.55 419,55
' ’ (B} i 72337 - 419,55 419.55
Net Deferred Tax Liabifity/{Assets) {A-8) {72317} (419.55} . ) (419.55)
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the Year Ended .
. . - 31.03.2017 - 31832018 01.04.2015
(Credit)/ charge in statement of Profitand Loss : - {303.48} - -
{credit)/ charge in statement of Other Comprehensive Income ) {0.15) - .
Total Deferred Tax ' {303.62) . B

Note :
The Company has recognzsed deferred tax assets on carried forwarded business losses and unabsorbed depreczatmn based on the reasonable certainty at future taxable

business profits which will be sufficient to offset business losses and uniabsorbed depreciation on which deferred tax assets has been created.

{Rs. in Lacs)
v ' . As at -
Other Non Current Assets
BT on Furrent A 31032017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Capital Advances ) . '
Unsecured, Considered Good - 2.78 18.95
Tetal' ) - i - 2.78 . 18.85
{Rs. i Lacs)
Inventories As at -
. : 31.03.2037 31.03.2018 | 01.04.2015
Traded Goods : 559 - -
Stores and Spares - ’ 1812 3248 4023
Total ] ‘ 15.71 3249 40.23
{Rs.in Lacs}
As at
T Receivabl -
. rade Receivables 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 (1.04.2015
Trade Receivables [unsecured) consist of following : 7 .
Considered Good : 22.60 - -
Total - . . 22.60 R
{Refer Note No. 35) //i,}tS
MU!\JE
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DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LEMITED

Notes to the Einancial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2017

(Rs. in Lacs)

Cash and Cash Eguivalents As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Cash and Cash Eguivalents i
Balance with Banksin Current A:ccunts 2.81 14.54 23.70
-|€asir an Hand 151.15 #31 .50
Total 153.96 14.96 2420
{Rs. in Lacs)
Bank Balances other than {fi} above - Asat
) . 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Bank Deposits Maturing within 12 Months 0.40 0.37 034
Totat 0.40 0.37 0.34
{Rs. in Lacs)
Other Financial Assets - Current Asal
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Unsecured, Considered Goog . -
Deposits 79.71 - -
Totak 79.71 - -
{Rs. in Lacs)
Current Tax {Net) - As at -
. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Advance Tax (Net of Pravision for Taxes) - - 80,85 21.61
Total - 80.84 81.61
(Rs. in Lacs)
Other Current Assets Asat v
. . 31.03.2037 321.03.2016 01.04.2015
Unsecured, Considered Good ]
Balances with Statutory & Government Authorities 14.99 2178 48.58
Advanace to Suppliers 18.81 5.66 090
Prepaid Expenses 845.76 8.27 20.28
- [Fotal 879.36 3571 69.76
. As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016 As at 1st April, 2015
Share Capital
No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs Na. of Shares Rs. In Lacs No. of Shares Rs_in Lacs
Authaorised: . .
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each 4,500,000 § 450.00 4,503,000 450.00 4,500,000 450.00
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Each 4,500,000 . 450.00 4,504,000 450.00 4,500,000 450.00 |
Total 9,000,000 900.00 9,006,000 ©00.00 9,000,000 $C0.00
lsseed, Subscribed And Fully Paid-Up: .
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 4,350,000 - 435.00 4,350,000 435.00 4,350,000 435.00
Total 4,350,000 £35:00 4,350,000 435.00 4,350,000 435.00

a) Recanciliation of the Shares at the Beginning and at the End of the Reporting Period

As at 31st March, 2017 -

As at 31st Marth, 2016

As at 1st April, 2015

Particulars Equity Shares Equity Shares £quity Shares
- No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs No. of Sharas Rs. in Lacs
At the Beginning of the Year 4,350,800 435.00 4,350,000 435.00
Issued During the Year - - - -
Bought Back During the Year - - - -
Outstanding at the End of the Year 4,350,600 435.00 4,350,080 435.00 4,350,000 435.00

bs) Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

-The Company has only one class of eguity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares

and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In

the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Campany. The distribution will be in proportj

number of equity shates held by the shareholders
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DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notas to the Finanslal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2017

¢} Detail of Equity Shareholders Holding More Than 5% Shares in the Company

As at 315t March, 2016

- As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2015
Particufars . of Sh . No. of Sh )
No- of Shares | "o, of tolding o.of3hares | o fHolding | No.of Shares Held| % of Holding
Held Held
Delta Corp Limited - Holding Company 4,350,000 10000 4,350,000 100.00 4,350,000 100.00
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As at
Other Equit +
: _ er mauity 31032017 . | 31032016
Capital Redemption Reserve '
As per Last Balance Sheet 435.00 435.00
{+) Addition During the Year - -
Closing Balance 435.08 435.00
Securities Premium Account .
As per Last Bzlance Sheet 108.71 108.71
{+) Addition During the Year - -
Closing Balance ’ 108.71 108.71
Surplus / (Defiéit) as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the Year - {4,085.42} ' (3,364.99)
{+}/ [-) Depreciation Effect - -
{+}/ () Net Profit / (Loss) for the Year 990.58 {700.43)
Closing Balance {3,074.83) {4,065.42)
Capital Contribution
As per Last.Balance Shest - -
[+}/ [-) Addition Curing the Year 0.16 -
Closing Balance 0.16 -
Other Comprehensive Inceme
As per Last Balance Sheet 0.04 -
{+} / [-) Addition/(Deduction) During the Year (0.31} 0.04
Closing Balance (D.27} 0.04
Total {2,531.24) {3.521.67};
{Rs. 1 Lacs}
. . As at
Barrowings - Non Current -
orrowne 31032017 | 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Secured '
Vehicle Loan
From a Bank . 7.22 - -
Secured by hypothecation of Motor Vehicle belonging te Company carrying.interest @ 9.35 % per annur. The
loan is repayable over 16 monthly installments.
Total- 7.22 - -
{Rs. in Lacs)
Provisions - Non Current Asat
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Provision for Employee Benefits )
- Gratuity {Unfunded) 2,75 0.07 0.04
Tatal . 8.75 0.07 0.04
{Rs.in Lacs)
Borrowings - Current As at
T 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Secured R
From Banks (Secured by exclusive charge on current assets, movable fixed assets, both present and future excluding 800.00 - -
vehicles) (Carrying interest @ 18.00% p.a.)
Unsecured :
toan from a Relatéd Party - Holding Company 3,749.87 4,024.87 3,787.87
[Repayable on Demand and Interest Free)
Total 4,549.87 4,024.87 3,787.87
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DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE HIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Endéd 31st Masch, 2017

{Rs. 19 Lacs)

—_ As at
Trade Payab! -
ade Payables 3L.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
- Mtcro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - -
- Others 23.86 403.06 26.5%
Total 23.66 403.06 26.5%
{Refer Note Ne.33)

Details of dues to Micre and Small Enterprises as defined under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2G06. Company has sent letters io supphers to
confirm whether they are covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 as well as whether they have file requirad memorandum with the

received the detail of outstanding are as under:

- presceibed authorities. Out of the letters sent to the parties, some conﬁrmat:ons have been received till the date of finalization of Balance Sheet. Based on the confirmation

(Rs: in Lacs)
- As at -
Particulars
. . 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year - - -
The interest amount remaining unpatd at the end of the year - - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terzns of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2096 along with the amount of
Jthe payment made to Lhe suppliér beyond the appointed day during the year . )
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay n making payment (which have been paid but i ) i
beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - - -
The amount of fusther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
. linterest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of dlsa"DWSHEE as 2 deductible - - -
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
{Rs. in Lacs)
Asat
Other Financial Liabitities s
ermna 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 01.04.2015
Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings 4.04 - -
Employee Liabifities 1035 1.12 271
Payahble Against Capital Assets 0.63 0.50 2:53
Book Overdraft 41.24 - -
Totai 56.26 1,72 5.24
[Rs. in Lacs)
As at
Other Current Liabilities - Current £
: " 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Duties & Taxas 41.83 3.79 2.08
Other Current Liabifities - 0.03 195.62
Tatal - 41.03 3.82 197.78
- (Rs. in Lacs)
. As at
Provisions - Current
) : 31.02.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Leave Encashment (Unfunded) 031 0.14 0.08
{Total 0.82 0.14 &.08
- (Rs.in Lacs)
A .
Curvent Tax (Net) s at =
- 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Taxes Rs.54.58 Lakhs) 36.82 - -
Totai 36.82 - -
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DELTA PLEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial §tatements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2017

[Rs. in Lacs) .

) . For the Year Ended
Revenue From Operations
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Sale of Services (includes Gaming Operations) 2,890.07 : -
Sale of Products ' 243.61 -
Gther Gperating Revenue - R
Total 3,133.68 -
{Rs. in Lacs)
For the Year Ended
Other Income :
31.03,2017 31.03.2016
Interest Income 0.76 0.03
Lease Rent Income 20.00 120.90
Interest or: Income Tax Refund 163 4,81
Sundry Balances Written Back 2.18 203.39
Total 24.57 | 328.23
{Rs. in Lacs)
i ) For the Year Ended
Cost of Material Consumed -
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Purchases of Traded Materials . 41.36 : -
Stores and Spares Consumed 2.95
Total 44.31 -
{Rs. in Lacs}
For the Year Ended
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade
. & 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Opening Stock of Traded Goods ’ - -
Less : Closing Stock of Traded Geods . 5.59 -
Total {5.59]] -
: {Rs. in Lacs}
y For the Year &nded
Employee Benefit Expense
i 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Sataries and Incentives 119.30 18.32
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 8.29 1.40
Gratuity and Leave kExpenses 1.12 0.20
Staff Welfare Expenses 14.60 1.73
Total 143.31 21.65
{Rs. in Lacs)
. For the Year Ended
Finance Costs
31.G3.2017 31.03.2016
Interest on Terr'r? Loan 0.36 -
Interest Others 5.53 4.04
Other 8orrowing Costs 20.62 0.03
Total 26.51 407 '
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DELTA PEEASURE CRUISE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

" Notes ko the Financial $tatements for the Year Erided 31st March, 2017

(Rs. in tacs)

L For the Year Ended
Other Expenses
31.03.2017 31.03.201%

Payment to Auditors

For Audit Fees 3.75 2.22
For Taxation Matters .71 -
For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.02 0.03
For Certification Matter - -

’ 4.48 2.25
Advertisement Expenses 0.84 -
Exchange Rate Difference 0.63 -
Insurance ' 7.80 10.94
Loss on Sale/Discard of Assets - 11.62
Legal and Professional Fees 48.63 36.82
License Fees 832.49 14.19
Miscellanegus Expenses 17.70 19.0¢
Penalties & Fines - 012
Postage and Communication 10.48 8.12
Printing and Stationery 3.95 -
Power and Fuel T 146.74 83.24
Rates & Taxes 337.41 27.15
Rent 512.04 512.57
Repairs to Buildings - -
Repairs to Machinery 67.14 36.03
Repairs to Others 37.78 16.15
Sales Promotion 1.10 0.03
Vehicle Expanses 6.37 -
Total 2,035.58




Delta Pleasure Cruise Company Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2017

. { Rs. In Lakhs)

31 Contingent Iiabilitigs and commitments Wareh 317017 Mari‘rs\ ;tl SOTE oL 305
[ Contmgent Liabilities :

{a) Clairs against the Company's Disputed Lsahllltses not Acknowledged as Debts .
The Commercial Tax Qfficer - VAT 1.77 1.96 1.96
The Dy Commissioner of Central Excise , Service Tax - Gea 26.61
The Commissioner of Ctistoms - Custom Duty / Penalty 5.00 5.00 -
- Additional License fees for Differential Amount of Annual Recurring fees for casino License 7879 78.79 -
-Employee Claim 81.89 £1.89 230
« Dutstanding Liahility of Tax Deducted at Source as per Traces Web5|te 2.67 3.21 -

{b) Guarantees & Securities
" Performance Guarantees given under EPCG  (Refer Nota No. iii) 21.00 - -

170.85 30.87

19112

{ Rs. In Lakhs)

(i) Capital Commitments

As at

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Estimated Amount of Contracts Remaining to be Executed on Capital Account and not Provided
forin respect of Capital Assets (Net of Advgnces paid)

10.08

2.78

10.08

2.78

{iii} Other Commitment

The Comapany has abtained licenies under the Export Promotion Credit Guarantee ( EPCG') Scheme far importing capital goods at a concessional rate of custom duty agamst

subrission of bank guarantee and bonds,

Under the terms of the respective schemes, the Campany is required to earn foreign exchange value equivalent to, eight times and in certain cases six times of the duty saved in
respect of licenses where export obligation has been fixed by the order of the Director General Foreign Trade, Ministry of Finance, as applicable within a specified period from the
date of import of capital goods. The Export Promotion Capital Goods Schemes, Foreign Trade Policy 2015-20 as issued by the Central Government of india, covers both
manufacturer’s exports and-service providers. Accardingly, in accordance with the Chapter 5 ‘of Foreign Trade Policy 2015-2020, the Company Is required to expart goods of FOB,
value of Rs. 121.24 Lakhs {Previous Year : Rs. Nit ). Non fulfilment of the balance of such future obligation, i any entails to the Government to recover full duty saved amaunt and

other penaities under the above referred scheme.




Delta Pleasure Cruise Cempaiiy Private Liniited

Notes ta financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2057

= 32 Employee Benefits :

8rief description of the Plans: .
The Company has various schemes for emp!oyee benefits such as Provident Fund, E5IC, Gratuity and Leave Encashment.The Company's defined contribution plans afe Provident Fund (in case of

certain employees) and Employees State Insurance Fund {under the provisicns of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Mlscellaneuus Peovisions Act, 1952). The Company has no further
obligaticn beyond making the contnhutmns to such plans. The Company’s defined Denefit plans include Gratuity.

- The gratuity plan is govarnad by the Pavrnent of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employee who has completed five years of servica is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits

orovided depends on the member's fength of service and salary at retirement age.

A. Principal actuarial assumptions used:

Gratuity [Unfunded}
Particulars As at
March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1,2015
Discount Rate [per annum} 6.81% 7% 7.89%
. iSalary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover . 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
Indidn Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortalfity Rate During Employmant Mariality {2006-08) Mortality (2006-08) Martality (2006-08}
. Ultimate Ultimate ultimate |
£xpected Rate of return on Plan Assets [per annum) NA NA NA
B. Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
) {Rs. imr Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity {Unfunded)
i 2016-17 2015-16
Current Service Cost 0.05 0.07¢"
Net interest 0.01 .00
Total Expenses / ([ncome} recognised in the Statement of Profit And Loss* 0.07 0.02

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are inciuded in the 'Employee benefits expenses’ fine item in the statement of profit & loss account.

€. Expenses Recognized in the Other Curhprehensive income [OCN) for Current Period

iRs. in Lakhs}

Particutars Gratuity {Unfunded)
) 2016-17 2015-16
Actuariat {Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period - Due to changes in financtal assumptions ‘041 0.00
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period - Due to ex;ierience adjustment 0,05 (0.04}
Net (income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 045 (0.04}
‘The remeasurement of the net defined benefit-liability is included in other comprehensive income.
P. Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
‘ {Rs. in Lakhs) .
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Cpening Net Liability 0.07 ¢.04
Current Service Cost 0,06 0.07
Net interest 0.01 0.00( .
Actuarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period - Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.41 0.00
Actuarial {Gzins)/Losses on Obligation For the Petiod - Due to experience adjustment 405 (0.04)|-
Net Liability/{Asset) Transfer In 8.48 -
Net {Liability)/Asset Fransfer Out {0.18) -
{Benefit Paid Directiy by the Emiployer) {0.18) .
Net Liability/{Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 8.75 /'0‘07: .
(35 S5,




" Delta Pleasure Crulse Company Private Limited

Notaes to finarcial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2017
E. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obfigation as at the end of the year
Fair Vakue of Plan Assets as at end of the year
Net Liability/{Asset] recopnised in the Balante Sheet [Note:17)

As at
“March 31, 2017 | March'31, 2016 April 1, 2015
8,75 0.07 0.01
8.75 0,07 0.01

F. Other Details

[Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2017 - 2016

No of Active Members 54 .4
Fer Month Salary For Active Members 376,611 19,200
Average Expected Future Service (Years) 5 6
Projected Benefit Obligatian {PBO} £74,995 7,400
Prescribed Contribution Fer Next Year (12 Months} - -
G. Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit of Obligation : from the Employer

(&s. in Lakhs}
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years Fram the Date of Regonmg 2016-17 2015-16
1st Fallowing Year 1.15 Q.00
2nd Following Year 1.07 0.00
3rd Following Year 1.06 0.01
4th Following Year 193 0.01
5th Following Year 0.95 0.0
Sum of Years 6 To 10 3.58 0.08
H. Sensktivity Analysis
) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 2016-17 2015-16
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 8.7% 0.07
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting {0.44) {0.01)

'|Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.50 0.01

Delta Effect of +1% Change'in Rate of Salary Increase 0.4¢% 0.01
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.45) (0.01)
Delta Effact of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover {0.05) (0.00)
Delta Effect of -13 Change in Rate of Employee Turncver 0.05 3.00

The above sensitivity analyses are based on change in an assumption'while holding atl other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unfikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumpticns
may be correlated. When czlculating the sensitivity of the deﬁned benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the deflned benefit okligation
calculated with the prajected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has heen applied as when calculating the defined benefit Ilahllzty recognised in the balance sheet.

The astimates of future salary increases, considered in actuartal valuation, take account of inflation, seaiority, promatian and other relevant factoes, sueh as supply and demand in the

employment market.

I. Defined contribution plans

The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. The tontributions are made to registered provident fund, Employee State Insurance Corporation and tabour Welfare Fund
administered by the govesnment. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contrlhuted and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recugmsed

during the pericd towards defined contribution plans are as follows:

Chargé to the Statement of Prafit and Lass based on cantributions:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Employer's conteibution to Regional Provident Fund Office 5.18 .52
Employer's contribution fo Employees’ State lnsurance 238 4.45
Employer's contribution to izbour Welfare Fund 0.20 0.04

1. Leave obligations
The leave obkgations cover the Company’s liahility for earned leave:

The amount of the provision of Rs. 0.82 Lakhs (315t March, 2016 Rs. (.14 Lakhs, 1 April 2015 Rs. 0.07 Iakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditicnal right to

defer settlement for any of these obligations.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

|Particulars
Leave Encashment
. 2017 2016
Current Service Cost ] 1.05 0.13
1.0% 4.13

Total Expenses [ (income) recognised in the Statement of Profit And Loss*




Delta Pleasure Cruise Company Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2017

33 Information in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24 on Related Party Disclosures.

1. List of related parties

{i) Holding Company
Delta Corp Limited (DCL)

(i) Companies that are directly/findirectly under Common Control
« Highstreet Cruises Company Private Limited {HCEPL)
» Daman Hospitality Private Limited {DHPL) -

(iii) Key Management Personnels (KMP):
* Mr. Ashish Kapadia (AK) — Director
s Mr. Hardlk Dhebar (HD} - D;rector and Group CFO

(iv) Individual Owing directly and indirectly an interest in voting power that glves them controt or significant influence
' + Mr. jaydev Mody (M) - Chairman of Holding Company
« Mrs. Zia Mody-(ZM) - Wife of Chairman of Holding Company
= Ms. Anjali Mody (AM) - Daughter of Chairman of Holding Company

{v} Enterprises over which persons mentioned in (iv} above exercise significant influence or control directly or indirectly :
» AZB & Partners {AZB)
» Skarma {SKM} -
* AAA Holding Trust {AAA)




Delta Pleasure Cruises Company Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2017

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Details of transactions carried out with related parties
. Enterprises over which
Companies that are . oo
. . . L, .| persons mentioned in {iv}
Nature of Transactions Holding Company directly or indirectly are above exercise significant Total
under common control A
; influence )

2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16
Unsecured Loan Taken ’ ‘
DCL 1,235.00 237.00 - - - - 1,235.00 237.00
Total . : 1,235.00 237.00 § . - - - - 1,235.00 237.00
Purchase of Food & Beverages : ‘ :
HCEPL - - 4.73 - - - 473 -
BCL 32.25 - - - - - - 3225 - -
Total ‘ 32.25 - 4.73 - - - 36.98 -
Sale of Food & Beverages - ' . ‘
HCEPL - - 178 - - - 178 -
DCL 6.65 - - - - - 6.65° -
Total 6.65 - 1.78 - - - 8.43 -
Unsecured Loan Repayment )
DCL 1,510.00 - - - - - 1,510.00 | - -
Total 1,510.00 - - - - - - 1,510.00 -
Rent Received . )
DCL 20.00 120.00 - - - - 20.00: 120.00
Total 20.00 120.00 - - - - 20.00 120.00
Rent Paid
HCEPL - - 130.00 180.00 - - 180.00 180.00
AAA - - - - 3831 ° 8.75 8:83 ~ 875
Total - - 180.00 180.00 8.83 8.75 188.83 188.75
Professional Fees Paid | ’ ‘
AZB - - - - 0.04 0.06 "0.04 : 0.06
SKM - - - - 2.01 3.42 2.01 3.42
Total - - - - 2.05 3.48 2.05 3.48
Reimbursement on behalf of / {by) ‘ ’ ] :
HCEPL - - {4.79) {10.85) - - {4.79) (10.85}
DHPL - - 0.47 - - - 0.47 -
Total - - {4.32) {10.85} - - {4.32) (10.85)




) Delta Pleasure Cruises Company, Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31stMarch, 2017

{Rs. in Lakhs)

betatls of transactions carrled out with related parties

. Companies that are directly or Enterprises ?ver w_h;cfx
. . oo persons mentioned in {iv)
: X Holding Company indirectly are under commaon N Total
Nature of Transactions ) above exercise significant
control )
influence
.2016-17 | 2015-16 [01.04.2015) 2016-17 | 2015-16{ 01.04.2015] 2016-17 | 2015-16] 01.04.2015} 2016-17 | 2015-16 01.04.2015

Qutstanding as on Year End : | :
Unsecured lL.oan Payahle . .
DEL 3,749.87 | 4,024.87 3,7187.87 - - - - - - 3,749.87 | 4,024.87 3,787.87
Total 3,749.87 | 4,024.87 | 3,787.87 - - - - - - 3,769.87 | 4,024.87 3,787.87
Other Receivables ‘
Bl 542 - - - - - - 5.42 | - -
HCEPL 2.89 , 2.89 - -
Total 5.42 - - 2.89 - - - - - 8.31 - -
Sundry Creditors
HCEPL - - - - 195.07 - - - - -
Total - - - - 196.07 - - - - -




Delta Pleasure Cruise Company Private Limited
-Notes to financial statements for.the Year Ended March 31,2017
34 Earning Per Shares :
Earnings Per Share (EPS) — EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year. Numbers used for calculating basic and diluted earaings per equity share are as stated below:

{Rs. iﬁ Lakhs unless specified).

: . Year Ended -
|Particutars , ' o 31st March, 2017 31st March,
) ) 2016
Profit/(Loss) after tax {Rs.in Lakhs} ) 590.59 {700.43)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as Denommator for Calculatang 4,350,000 . +4,350,000
Basic Earnings per share (nos.) . ' :
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as Denommatcr for Calculating 4,350,000 4,350,000
Diluted Earnings per share(nos.) _ : o
Earnings Per Share - Basic (Rs.) i . ’ 22.77 - - {16.10)
Earnings Per Share - Diluted (Rs.) . ' 22.77 (16.10)
Face value per share (Rs.} ] ‘ ' ' ' ) ©.10.00 10.00
- - /’/i ="
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a)

37

Capital Risk Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance. Tha capital structure of the Company consists of net debt {borrowings as detailed in notes 14, 15 and 18
offset by cash and bank balances) and tatal equity of the Company.

.The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual as well as long term operating plans and other strategic |nvestment

plans. The funding requirements are met through long-term and short-term borrowings. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of
total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolic of the Company.

- {Rs. iri Lakhs) .

The capital components of the Company are as

given helow: March 31, 2017 © March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Total Equity . . (2,096.24) [3,086.67_) o {2,386.29)
Short Term Borrowirnigs ) . 4,549.87 4,024.87 3,787.87
Long Term Borrowings 7 o722 .- -
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 404 - ; : -
Total Debt 4,561.13 4,024.87 3,787.87
Cash & Cash equivalents ‘ 153.96 14.96 ) 2420
Bank balances other than above 0.40 0.37 ' 0.34
Net Debt : s 4,406.77 . 4,009.54 . 3,763.33
Debt Equity ratio (2.10) : (130) S {158)
Liguidity Risk

Prudent fiquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the avaiia'bi!ity of funding througﬁ an adeguate

~ amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying

businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling
forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (cémprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expecied cash flows,

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Maturities of Financial Liabilities March 31,2017
. : Upto 1 year 1to5 years 5 years & above
Borrowings ) 4,553.91 7.22 . ‘ -
Trade Payables ' : 23.66 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 52.22 - -
: ) 4,629.79 ©7.22 -
[Rs. in Lakhs)
Maturities of Financial Liabilities March 31, 201&_;
Upte 1 year 1to 3 years 5 years & above
Borrowings ' 4,024.87 - .
Trade Payables : 403.06 - -
Other Financial Liabilities _ L 1,72 - -
4,429.65 - . -
‘ ) ' {Rs. in Lakhs)
Maturities of Financial Liabilities April 1, 2015
. Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 5 years & above
Borrowings 3,787.87 : - -
Trade Payables " 2651 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities ) 5.24 - -

3,819.62 - ' - _
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Interest Rate Risk & Sensitivity Analysis

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
The sensitivity analyses below have been determjned based on the exposure to interest rates for assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting -
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's '
- Profit for the year would decrease/increase by amount as stated below. This is mainly attributable to the Company’'s-exposure to borrowings at

floating interest rates.

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial Lighilities (In
Lakhs)

Impact on Profit or
Loss before tax for the
year (In Lakhs)

Impact on Profit or Loss
hefore tax for the year
(In Lakhs) decrease by

As at 31 March 2017
As at 31 March 2016
As at 01 April 2015

800.00

Change in Interst rate Increase by 1% 1%
1% 8.00 (8.00)
1% - -
1% - -

39 Based on the "Management Approach™ as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CQDM) evaluates the
Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the
Company operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of gaming which the Management and CODM recognise as the sole business
segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.
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.l\{otes to financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2017,
" 40 Income taxes relating to continuing operations '
. {Rs.in Lakhs}

a} income tax recognised in profit or foss March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 -
Current tax :
In-respect of the current year " 87.00 -
In respect of prior years .- -
87.00} -
bj Deferred tax _
Carry Forward Business Losses and Unabsorhed Deprecmtron - (303.48)
‘ (303.48) -
. Total income tax expense recegnised in the current year relatlng (216.48) -
to continuing operations :
c) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income ‘ {Rs.in Lakhs)
: : : March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Rs.in Lakhs  'Rs.in Lakhs
Deferred tax
Arising on income and expenses recogrused in other -
comprehens:ve income:
‘Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 0.15 -
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 0.15 -
d) Deferred tax balances
- The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/{liabilities) .
presented in the separate statement of financial position: .
' ' - (Rs.in Lakhs}
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs.in Lakhs Rs.in Lakhs Rs.in Lakhs
Deferred tax assets {net) 723.17 419.55 419.55
Deferred tax IiabiEities {net) - - -
723.17 419.54 - 419,55

Deferred tax assets and Ilabiilties are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Defeérred
* tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreu_:iation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

41 Movement of tax expense during the year ended 31st March, 17

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Recognised in .
. Recognised'in other .
Opening balance ¥ i Closing balance
profit or loss comprehensive
‘ income
Deferfed tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Unahsorbed Losses 419.55 303.48 -
|Provisiont for Post Retirement Benefit . ' - 0.15
Total : 419.55 303.48 0.15




v (Rs.in Lakhs}) .

Movement of tax expense during the year ended 315t March, 16

Recognised in

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Unabsorbed Losses '

|Total

. : Recognised in her -
Opening balance | . ¢ g ! . Ot_ er iy Closing balance
‘ ' profitorloss | comprehensive _ o
income
419.55 - - 419.55
419,55 - - 419.55

The income tax expense for the year can be recenciled to the accounting profit as follows:

(Rs.in Lakhs)

{March 31, 2017

Particulars ‘|narch 31, 2016
Profit before tax 774.10 -
Income tax expense calculat.ed under MAT at 20.38885% {2015- -

116: NA) : 157.83 -
Unabscrbed_ Bepreciation _(71.73) -
Others © 089 -
Current Tax Provision [A) 87.00 -
Incremental Deferred Tax Asset on Account of Business Loss 303.48 -
Deferred Tax Provision (B) ' 303.48 -
Tax Expenses Recognised in Statemnte of Profit and Loss (A+B) (216.48) -
Effective Tax Rate {27.96) -
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a)

b)

Ealr Value Disclosures

Rs.in Lakhs
: . ~ March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Catepories of Financiat Insfruments: | FVTPL FYTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Cost
‘[Financial Assets
Cash & Bank Balances - - 154.36 - 15.33 - - 24,54
Trade Receivables - - 22.60 - - - - -
Non_Other Financiat Assets - - 54.81 - - 101.18 - - 97.46
Current, Other Financial Assets - - 79.71 - - - - -
- - 311.48 - 116.51 - - 122.60
Financial ligbilities

Borrowings - . 4,557.08 - "4,024.87 - - *3,787.87
Trade Payables - - 23.66 - 403.06 - - 26.51
Other Financial Liabilities - - 56.26 - 172 - - 5.24

) - - 4,637.00 - 4,429.65 - - 3,819.62

Fair Value Hierarchy and Methad of Valuation

Except as detailed in the following table, the Company considers that the carrymg amounts ofﬁnancml instruments recogmsed in the financial statements approxxmate their fair

Levei 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idential assets and liabilities,

Levet 2: Input other than quoted prices included within levef 1'that are chservable for'the assets or liability, either directly [i.e.as prices} or mdlrectly (i.e.derived from prices)

Levef 3: Inputs for the assets of liabilities that are not based on observable market datalunobservable inputs)
The following table preserits fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as of march 31, 2017

. Rs. in Lakhs

particulars i March 31, 2017 . .

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets .
Carsied at Amortised Cost ©311.48 - - 311.48 311.48
Einancial Liahilities . :
Carried. at Amortised Cost 4,637.00 - - 4,637.00 4,637.00

L March 31, 2016

Particulars - <

Larrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total|
Financial Assets
Carried at Amortised Cost 116.51 B - 116.51 116.5%
Einancial Liahifities
Carried at Amortised Cost 4,429.65 - - 4,429.65 4,429.55
Particulars - Aprit 01, 2015

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets .
Carried at Amortised Cost 122.00 - - 122.00 122.00
Financial Liabilities
Carriéd at Amortised Cost 3,819.62 - - 3,819.62 3,819.62
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43 Note:- FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF Ind AS ’

(a)

(8]

{c)

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 1st April, 2016, with a transition
date of 1st April, 2015. Ind AS 101-First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards requires that all ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued

and effective for the first Ind AS financial statements which is for the year ended 315t March, 2017 for the company, be applied retrospectively and consistently
for all financiai years presented. Consequently, in preéparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and complied with
the mandatory exceptions provided in Ind AS 161, as explained below. The resulting difference in the carrying values of the assets and liabilities as at the

transition date betwean the Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognised directly in equity {retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity).

Set gut below are the Ind AS 101 optional exemptions availed as applicable and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to lad AS.

Optignal Exemptions availed
{a) Deemed Cost -

"The Company has considered fair vatue of certain items of property, plant and equipment and remaining all the other items vcompr‘lsing in property, plant and
equipment would be measured at Ind AS compliant cost in accordance with Ind AS 16 and Intangible assets carrying amount of under previous GAAP as
deemed cost asat transition date.

Applicable Mandatory Exceptions

(a) Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accardance
with previous GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies).

Ind AS estimates as at £ Apsil 2015 ace consistent with the estimates as at the sarne‘date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The c'ompam,' made
estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not reqaired under previcus GAAP:

- Impairment of financiai assets based on expected credit loss model.

{9) Classification and measurement of financial assets
As required under Ind AS 101 the company has assessed the classification and measurement of financiai assets {investment in debt instruments) on the basis of -
the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide a guantification of thg effect of significant differences arising from the transition from previous GAAP to ind AS as
required under Ind AS 101:
i) Recanciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 (Transition Date) .
i) A.Reconciliation of Balance sheet as.at March 31, 2016
B. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2016
i} Reconciliation of Equity as at April 1, 2015 and as at March 31, 2016
w} Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows

The presentation requirements under Previous GAAP differs from Ind AS, and hence, Previous GAAP infermation has been regrouped for ease of reconcikation
with Ind AS, The Regrouped Previous GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with.Previous GAAP.




|Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Standalone balance sheet as ot 315t March, 2036 and 1st Apsil, 2015

{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at 31.03.2016 Asat 01.04.2015
Particulars | Regrouped Previous Effect of ‘ Asper Ind AS | Regrouped Previous| Effect of transition to Ind, Aslper Init A5
. GAAP transition to Ind- §  Balance sheet GAAP - As Balance sheet
As
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property Plant and Equipment's 866,42 201.93 " 55849 911.77 33.65 878.12
(b} Capital Weork in Progress . - - - - -
{c} Intangible assets 0.64 - 0.64 0.94 - 0.%4
{d) Financial Assets - -
{i) Investments . - - Co- - -
{iii) Other Financial Assets i0l.18 - 101.18 101.3% 3.83 87.46
{iv] Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 419.55 - 419.55 | 419.55 - 419,55
{v] QOthar Non Current Assats 2.78 - 278 18.95 - 18.95
 Tofal Non Cuerant Assets 1,384.57 201.93 1,182.64 1,452.51 37.48 1,415.02
Current Assets ) - ' - '
{a) laventories 32.49 - ' 3248 40.23 - 40.23
{b) Financial Assets - -
(i) Otherlnvestments - - . - - .

1 (i) Trade Raceivable - - - B B - -
{iii) Cash and Bank Balance 14.96 - 14.96 24.20. - 24.20
{iv) Other Bank Bafance '0.37 - 0.37 0.34 - 0.34
(v) Loans ' - - - -
[vi) Other Financial Assets - - - - - -
{vii} Current Tax (Net) 80.84 - 80.84 8161 - 51,61
{viiiy Other Currant Assets 3571 - 3571 £7.54 (2.22) ' 69.75
(ix), Asset Held fqr'SaIe - -

" Total Current Assets 164.37 - 164.37 213.92 12.22) 216.13
TOTAE ASSETS 1,548,94 201.93 *1,347.00 1,666.43 35,27 1,631.15
EQUITY AND LIABILFTIES ' 201.84
Equity ’ )
{a}) Equity Share Capital 435.00 - 435.00 435.00 | - 435,00
{b} Other Equity * {3,319.74) 201.83 {3.521.67) {2,785.02) 35.27 {2,821.29)
Total Equity © {2,884.74} 201.83 {3.086.67} {2,351.02) 36,27 {2,386.29)
Non-Current Liabilities . -
[a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - - - - - -
(b} Provisions 0.07 {0.00) 8.07 0.04 - 0.04
Total Non Current Lizbilities . Q.07 {0.00) 0.07 0.04 - 0.04
Current Liahilities
(2} Financial Liabilities . .
{iYy Borrowings 4,024.87 0.00 4,624.87 . 3,787.87 - 3,787.87
(i} Trade Payables . 4083.06 0.00 403.06 26.51 - 26.51
(i} Other Financial Liabilities - 172 0.00 1.72 5.24 - 5.24
{B) Other Current Liabilities 3.82 .00 3.82 197.70 - 192.70
[c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net} - - - -
[d) Provisions 0.14 (C.00) 0.14 0.08 - 0.08
Total Current Uabilities 4,433.61 0.00 2,433.61 4,017.40 - 4,017.38
TOTAL 1,548.94 201,94 1,347.00 1,666.42 35,27 1,630.15 |
Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 (Rs. in Lakhs}
. Regrouped Previous Effect of
Particulars -,
GAAF Transition to Ind As per ind AS
Income: ..
Revenye from Gperations - - -
Other.Income 334.39 {3.84} . 328.23
Total Revenue 324,39 {3.84) 328.23
Expenses:
Employee Bénefit Expenses 21.62 - [6.03) 21.65
Finance Costs 4.07 (0.00) 4.07
Depreciation and Amortization Expense §0.39 (164.31) 224,70
Other Expenses 772.04 {6.19) 778.23
Total Expenses 858.12 {170.54) 1,028.65.
Profit Before Exceptional and Tax (533.73) 166.70 {700.43)
Exceptional Items - - -
Profit Before Tax {533.73) 166,70 (700.43)
Tax Expenses
- Current Tax - - -
- Deferred Tax - - -
Tetal Tax Expenses - - -
Nat Profit for the Year [a} (533.73) -166.70 {780.43)
Other Comprehensive Income
ltems.that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined henefit plans - {0.04)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year.[B} - {0.04)
Total Comprehensive income forthe year (A+B) {533.73) 166.66




3}

b}

<

d)

e)

fl

Reconciliation of Loss and Other Equity between Ind AS and pravmus GAAP {Rs. in Lakhs)

Loss C Other Equity
Nature of Adjustments Note No. 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
'| Loss / Other Cquity 82 per Previous GAAPR . c ) {533.73) {3,319.74}}. . {2,786.02}("

Preposed dividend including tax « - - -
Falr valuation as deemed cost for Proparty, Plant and Equlpment b (168.28) {#01.93)] . {33.65)
Fair Valuation for Financtal Assets d, e 1.62 . - . (1.62)
Share based payment costs recagnised based on fair value method h - - -
Others (Net) a [0.03) ] - -
Impact of Deferred Taxes {net) on above adjustments k . - - -
Total {166.70) {201.93} Ci36.27)
Profit before OCI / Reserve as per [nn‘ AS (700.43) (3,521.67} {2,821.28)
Note:

Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets (PPE)
Under Iad AS 16 all iterns of comprising in PPE have been measured at Ind AS compliant cost.
Dlie to retrespective ad;usrmem of depraciation based on estimated useful life Rs.168.28 Lakhs and Rs.33.65 have been provided as additional depreciation to PPE in the year 2015-16 and on transition.

date respectively.

Security deposits
Under the previous GAAP, interest free security depuosits are recorded at their transaction value. Under iND AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value,

Accordingly, the Company has fair valued the security deposits under IND AS. Diference hetween fair value of security deposits-and the carrying value {transaction value) as
per Previous.GAAP has been recognised as prepaid rent. Consequently, the amount of security deposits has been decreased by Rs, Nil Lakhs as at 31st March, 2016 (Rs. 3,84
lakhs as at 1st April, 2015). The prepaid rent increased by Ry, Nil lakhs as at 31st March 2015 (Rs. 2.22 Lakhs as at 1st April, 2015}.Total equity increased fdecreased by
Rs. 1.62 Lakhs as at 1st April, 2015.

Re-measurements of pest-employment benefit obfigaticn -

Under Ind AS, re-measuremants ia. actuanalgams and losses and the return on plan assets excludmg amounts m:luded in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit
lizbility are recognised in other comprehenswe income instead of profit and loss. Under the previous GAAP, these re-measuremeants were formlng part of the prefit and loss for
the year. As a result of this change, the toss for the year ended Ma(ch 31, 2016 incraased by Rs. 0.03 Lakhs There is no impact on the total equity as at 31st March, 2016,

Retained carnings .
Retained earnings as at April 1, 2015 has been adjusted consequens to the above ind AS transition zdjustments.

Gther comprghensive income :
Under Ind A%, allitems of income and expense recoghised in a period should be included in prefit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise, ltems

of income and expense that are aot recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income’ includes re-measurements
of defined benefit plans through OCL. . '

The Ind AS-adjustments are either non cash adjustments or are regrnup‘thg amang the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Consequentiy, Ind AS
adopticn has no impact an the net cash flow for the year endeq 31st March, 20156 as compared with the previous GAAP,
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44 Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars ~

March 31, 2017

March-31, 2016

Traveliing Expenseas

Capital Asset Perchased 72.64 .
Other Expenses 6.73 -
Total 79.37

45 Disclosure in Respect Of Specified Bank Notes held and transacted during the period 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 7036 -

{Amount in Rs. }

. Other .
Particulars Specified Bank, dencmination notes Total {Rs.}
Notes{SBNs) " & Coins ’

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 9,761,000 389,280 10,150,290
[+]) Permitted receipts - AZG,71C . 420,710
(-} Permittad payments - 267,396 257,386
(-} Amount deposited in Banks 9,751,000 - ) 9,761,000
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12,2016 - - b 542,604 | 542504 |

For the purpeses of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes' shall hg've the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of india, in the
Ministry of Finance, Departmant of Econemic Affairs number 5.0. 3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016,

46 The Financial Statements were autherised for issue by the directors on 29th May, 2017

Far and on behalf of Board

(Ashish Kapadia)
‘Director
DiN': 02011532 pHT: 06046112

Mumbai ; 25tk May, 2017




